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7. Description ]

Condition Check one Check one

_x_ excellent — _deteriorated ____ unaltered _ X original site
— good —__ruins X _altered — moved date
—__fair —__ unexposed (s1ightly)

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Busch Building, a combination office and retail building completed in 1913,
stands as one of the finest examples of Late Gothic Revival architecture in Dallas
and the nation as a whole. Rising 250 feet above the intersection of Main and Akard
Streets in downtown Dallas, the building has 17 stories,plus a basement and a tower.

The building consists of three parts, a five story block base (originally the
lease space for A.H. Harris Department Store), a projecting eleven story u-shaped
mass, and a small one-story tower positioned over the southwest corner of the build-
ing at the Main and Akard Street intersection. The outside of the u-shaped seament
aligns with the west, south, and east facades; the interior light court faces north.

The building's frontage is 100' along Akard Street and 125' 6" along Main. The
two most significant facades of the building face these two streets. The facades
are lavishly decorated with Curvilinear Continental Gothic terra-cotta relief work
and complex fenestration patterns. Face_brick is the predominant material of the
east &nd north facades as well as of the interior light court.

On Main and Akard Streets granite-clad structural steel columns form a street
level arcace. The columns continue as pilasters throughout the full height of the
building. They form the outermost plane of the facade, which is broken by horizontal
string courses every three floors and by a heavy cornice at the sixteenth floor.
A1l secondary spandrels and non-structural pilasters are recessed away from this
plane.

On the first or ground floor, a glass storefront is set back aporoximatelv
seven feet from the Tace of the ceramic tile-clad exterior columns. The columns
are topped by a massive spandrel that is broken by an arch at the building's lobby
entry on Main Street. This arch, which is inscribed inside a rectangle, springs
from two small velute-shaped shelves atiached to the pilasiers. The small irizngular
areas between the rectangle and arch are decorated with quatrefoils, as is the
underside of the zrch iiself. The arch is ribbed horizontally with rows of dentils
and flower motifs serving as decoration. The lobby entry with its original granite
facade is one of the few remaining portions of the original sireet facade that
was remodeled in 1970 when the pedestrian arcade was created. A small canopy re-
places the heavily ornamented cast iron canopy that once marked entry to the retail
portion of the building.

The second floor is lavishly ornamented. Its windows, framed with low, flat
arches, are enclosed between two horizontal Triezes of heavy relief Gothic orna-
mentation. The corner bay at Main and Akard has one large window flanked on both
sides with a small window, all of which is enclosed under one large curvilinear
ornamental terra-cotta arch. (A similar detail is repeated over the lobby entrance.)
Another large window is placed along each side of this window grouping. These win-
dows and all remaining windows on the second floor have individual arches above
them.

The third through fifteenth floors carry identical elements and have little
detail or ornamentation. The Akard Street facade is broken into four bays. From
left to right, the first three bays have four egually sized and shaped 1/1 sash
windows separated by secondary pilasters that run the full height of the building.
The fourth, or corner bay, which is detailed identically on both the Main and Lkard
Street facades, is wider than the other bays, creating a strong visual anchor for
the building. Two small 1/1 sash windows separate three larger windows to create
the rhythm ABABA. The five remaining bays on the Main Street facade are divided
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(from left to right) into two alternating bays of three windows and four windows
for the first four bays and then a smaller three window fifth bay at the far right.
The Tast bay contains the building's elevator lobby. The east and north facades
as well as the interior Tight well contain 2/2 sash windows set flush with the
face brick exterior walls. _

The sixteenth fioor on the Main and Akard Street facades is separated from
the other floors by a heavy cornice line (represented by a terra-cotta band on

penthouse is sheathed with terra-cotta set in the same plane as the surrounding
brick. A highly decorated battlement caps the building, and a series of pinnacles
and finials terminate the upward thrust of the dominant pilasters. The skyline

of the building is broken by a tower. The tower has the same Tenestration pat-
tern as the floors directly below and is also topped by a battlement, finials,
and pinnacies. Inside the battlement are the walls of the mechanical penthouse
that houses the boilers.

In 1970 the building was renovated. Renovation included adapting the retail
portion of the building left vacznt when Sanger-Harris departed in 1965. A three
story iobby serving a bank now occupies the space first used by A.H Rarris
Department Store. An interior arcade lined with retail stores ccnnects this
Tobby with Eim Street, which is directly north of the buiiding. During the
renovation more restrooms ware added, and the main stairwel] was enclosed to
bring the building up to code requirements, The remainder of the interior,
including the elevator lobby and general office Space remains as originally
constructed. Marble wainscots linz alj corridors,and carved wood doors surround
cut giass panels. Except for the creation of a street ievel arcade that extends
along Main and Akard Streets, the exterior of the building was left relatively
untouched on the two predominant facades. On the three facades of the interior
light well a red, white, and blue striped super-graphic was painted diagonally
across all surfaces including window sashes and the battlement.



8. Significance D)

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

___ prehistoric ___ archeology-prehisioric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion

. 1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic - conservation —law —__science

____1500-1599 ___ agriculture —__ economics — literature — sculpture

—_1600-1699 __X architecture —— education — military — social/

—__1700-1799 __ art —__engineering —  music humanitarian

—__1800-1899 __X commerce —__ exploration/settlement __ philosophy — theater

X 1900- ___ communications — industry ___ politics/government ____ transportation
—— invention —— other (specify)

Specific dates 1919__Ngyember 1913 BuilderiArchitect pipett, Hag%s & Barnett; St. louis, MO.
Lang & Witchell; Dallas, Texas

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The Busch Building, built in 1913 for Augustus A. Busch & Company, stands today
as one of the finest examples of the Late Gothic Revival style, which was regarded
by many as the most perfect expression of the skyscraper form. Designed by the firm
of Barnett, Hayes and Barnett of St. Louis Missouri, in association with Lang and
Witchell of Dallas, the building was one of the first in the country, along with
the highly acclaimed Wooclworth Building in New York by Cass Gilbert, to be built
in this style. The seventeen-story building was planned as complementary retail
and office space for its counterpart, the Adolphus Hotel. It was the home of A.H."
Harris & Company of the now Sanger-Harris Department stores and through & later
alteration became the first tail building to house its energy supply on the roof.
Drury Blake Alexander's Historic Landmark Survey assigns the Busch Building a

first pricrity status.

JATA TS

During the 1910's Dallas was undergoing’%onsiderab]e growth and prosperity,
which made it one of the largest cities in the state of Texas. It was also becoming
the financial center of the Southwest. Sgéh growtn naturally ied tc the deveiopment
of the downtown area. Civic leaders intstrested in promoting that agrowth included
Charles F. Bioanz, Kenry D. Li L. Hay, and F.B. Tyron. In 1910 they traveled
to St. Louis to suggest that(huets . Busch, owner of the Oriental Hotel (the
site now occupied by the Baker Hotel) build another hotel in Dallas. Best known
for his interests in the Busch Brewery Division, Busch was also chairman of the
board of the Busch-Sulzer Diesel Engine Co., director of the Manufacturés Railroad
Co., and board chairman of the St. Louis O'Fallon Railroad Co. From this meeting
came thefgg}story Adoiphus Hotel. Completed in 1912, the hotel served for yvears

5ﬂwwf; as the patiern for luxury hotels in the Southwest. When the hotel was compieted,
- .5 Busch began work on the 17-story Busch Building, which was to serve as an office
45%  and retail supplement to the Adolphus.

The Busch Building was completed in 1913. During this period the architecture
of Dallas shifted away from the Chicago School of Architecture and returned to
historical eclecticism for expression. The shift was probably due to the influence
of outside firms moving to the Southwest who brought their own architectural firms and
their own style of architecture with them. The architectural firm of Barnett,
Haﬂ%s and Barnett brought with them the eclectic philosophy of architects in the
St.“Louis area. They gave the Busch Building a unique character through the use of
Gothic ornamentation, a style not yet applied to the skyscraper form except for the
Wooiworth Bujiding in New York by Cass Gilbert, which was also compieted in 1913.
Both Barneit and Gilbert apparently arrived at the same conclusion that the
Gothic style wnich so dramatically displayed the verticality of cathedrals was
also appropriate for the vertical facades of the skyscraper. Although the Woolworth
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Building has been credited with being the first Late Gothic Revival skyscraper,
it 1is entirely possible that these two buildings were designed and built
almost simultaneously.

Wlhen the Busch Building opened in 1913, the first five floors and base-
ment were leased to A.H. Harris, one of the most successful department stores
in Dallas. Founded during the early 1890's, the store occupied the Busch
Building for over forty-eight years. In 1961 A.H. Harris was purchased by the
Federated Stores and merged with Sanger Bros., another major department store
that dated from the same period as A.H. Harris Co. In 1965 the Sanger-Harris
store moved to another downtown location, which left the retail portion of the
Busch Build unoccupied for the first time.

In 1918 the Busch Building was sold to the Southern Life Insurance Com-
pany, which sold the building the following year to the Kirby Investment Com-
pany. It remained in their hands until 1941 when it was purchased by the Main
and Akard Investment Corporation. In 1947 the owners installed roof top boil-
ers for heating the building. Until then the buiiding had been heated by ex-
naust steam from the Adolphus Hotel's electrical generating plant. The new
system was needed because the Adolphus converted irom its own power plant tc
the public utility supply. The roof top system.dssigred by engineers Zumwalt
and Winther of Dallas in consultation with the Martyn Brothers Plumdbing Co.,
was the first of its kind in the country and.,as such, attracied attention
throughout the construction industiry.

In 1962 the Busch Building was sold to Main and Akard L7D., a joint part-
nersnip of Unit Inc. and Central City Inc. Under the new manzcement the Busch
Building underwent its first renovation. At a cost of twc miiiion doliars the
1970 renovation brought new 1life to a building that was losing its economic
justification, and yet the building remains today much as it was when the
building was completed.
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Dallas Times Herald. February 9, 1970.
The Western Architect. The Western Architect Inc.: July 1913 & July 1914.
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property less than one
Quadrangle name Dallas, Texas

UMT References

Apal|7jo6[18,0] [3,6[2,8]9,00]

1:24000
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Verbal boundary description and justification o
Southwest corner Main and Akard
Akard = 100.0'
Main = 125.5'
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state code county code o
state code county code

i1. Form Prepared By

name titte Kenneth Scharr, Larry Keen, Themas Holt; Katherine L. Smith

S Arch e
chool of Architecture & Environmental De sian; March 18, 1980

organization p,jyate Rosscarch Consultant

University of Texas at Arlington;

street & number  oc95 | A8+4Kh S+

817 273-2801

Arlington;
city or town Austin

state Texa )

telzphone _512 _A51-2684 S

12. Stiate Historic Preservation Of?cer Cert:})ca}tmn

The evaluaied significance of this property within the stete is:

riational state _X_jocal

—_—

Al

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Pt enatlon Ac 0(1966 (Public Lav» 89—
_ 665). | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the Naticnal Register and certity that it ha¥ been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

Sta‘e Historic Preservation Officer signature

titte State Historic Preservation Officer

date April 23, 7980

For HCRS use only

| hereby certify that this preperty is included in the National Register

Keeper of the Naticnal Register

Atiest:

date

Chief o! Registration
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